
Flag Salute

Presentation

Executive Session

Mayor Comments

Public Comment

Minutes Tab A 1/23/2019

Approval of Vouchers

Staff Reports Tab B Chris Coker

Tab C Todd Baun

Tab D Staff

Old Business

New Business Tab E Truck Roll fee

Tab F Vehicle Purchase

Tab G 6th St. Survey

Tab H Tenelco Contract

Tab I Upcoming Projects

Ordinances

Resolutions Tab J Fees and Deposits for Park Kitchen & Community Center

Contracts

Please turn off Cell Phones- Thank you
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Accommodation is Provided Upon Request

The City of McCleary is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

La ciudad de McCleary as un proveedor de igualdad de oportunidades y el empleador

McCleary City Council 
Agenda

02/13/19- 6:30PM

Roll Call: ___Pos. 1-Richey, ___ Pos. 2-Huff , ___ Pos. 3- Heller, ___ Pos. 4- Blankenship, ___ Pos. 5- Iversen

To consider the acquisition of real estate by the City.  RCW 

42.30.110(1)(b). Executive session to last 10 minutes. 



TA
B

 -
 A



                                CITY OF MCCLEARY

                         Regular City Council Meeting

                          Wednesday, January 23, 2019

ROLL CALL AND FLAG SALUTE Councilmembers Richey, Huff, Heller, Blankenship and Iversen were in attendance.

ABSENT None.

STAFF PRESENT Present at the meeting were Director of Public Works Todd Baun, Clerk-Treasurer Wendy

Collins, Chief Steve Blumer and Attorney Chris Coker.

PUBLIC HEARING None.

PUBLIC COMMENTS Sue Portschy introduced members of her church who help prepare the Friday meals at the

Methodist Church. Mayor Orffer informed them there are alternative locations for them to

continue serving lunches at, if the Methodist Church is not able to continue offering their location.

Ms. Portschy stated the church will hold a closing celebration on May 19th and they should be

moved out by June 30th. The upstairs area is ready for the museum to move their items to.

Mayor Orffer thanked them for their service to our community and added the Olympic Christian

Church has a Fellowship Hall that is available as an alternate location, if the need arises.

MAYOR COMMENTS Mayor Orffer is excited about January and all the projects and activities the employees are

working on. She added she will be out of town for a few days and will call upon Mayor Pro Tem

Huff to step in if he is needed.

MCCLEARY CIVIC RENEWAL 

COUNCIL (MCRC) PUBLIC 

SURVEY RESULTS

Chris Miller, President of the MCRC, gave a presentation of the results from their public survey

and talked about events they are planning.

VOUCHERS Accounts Payable checks approved were 45501 - 45543, including EFT's, in the amount of

$333,226.10 and 45545 - 45578, including EFT's in the amount of $57,630.97.

It was moved by Councilmember Iversen, seconded by Councilmember Richey to approve

the vouchers. Motion Carried 5-0.

MINUTES APPROVED It was moved by Councilmember Richey, seconded by Councilmember Huff to adopt the

minutes from the January 9, 2019 meeting. Motion Carried 5-0.

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT Chris Coker provided a written report for the Council.

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 

REPORT

Todd Baun reported the museum roof is close to completion and the outer buildings will be

addressed at a later date, including porches.

Todd also reported the City received Federal money for the 3rd Street Project so we have to

make sure the project is handled correctly. Mayor Orffer met with Representative Chapman

yesterday and he will be happy to talk with Todd, if needed.

3RD STREET IMPROVEMENTS 

CM SCOPE

It was moved by Councilmember Iversen, seconded by Councilmember Richey to 

authorize the Mayor to sign the 3rd Street Improvement Upper Project Construction 

Management Scope of Work. Motion Carried 5-0.

EXECUTIVE SESSION None.

PUBLIC COMMENT Councilmember Iversen reminded everyone that the Summit Pacific Wellness Center is having a 

grand opening at noon on Friday and she hopes everyone can attend.

MEETING ADJOURNED Mayor Orffer called for adjournment at 7:074 pm, with no objection from the Council. The

next meeting will be Wednesday, February 13, 2019 at 6:30 pm. Motion Carried 5-0.

Approved by Mayor Brenda Orffer and Clerk-Treasurer Wendy Collins.



TA
B

 -
 B



Younglove & Coker 
A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

"SINCE 1974" 

1800 COOPER POINT ROAD SW, BLDG 16, PO BOX 7846, OLYMPIA, WASHINGTON 98507-7846 

TELEPHONE (360) 357-7791                           FACSIMILE (360) 754-9268 
OFFICE@YLCLAW.COM 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Memorandum 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council, City of McCleary 

FROM:  Christopher John Coker, City Attorney 

DATE:  February 6, 2019 

RE:  Significant Legal Activities as of February 6, 2019. 

 
All staff training:  Held the all-staff harassment training as planned on January 25th, 2018.  I think most 
employees of the City attended.  Good discussion and I think it went pretty well.  Employees seemed 
engaged and interested. 
 
Ordinances and Resolutions:  Prepared a resolution to allow City to charge fee for disconnects of water 
and power soley for “convenience” of property owners.  Issue has arose where a property owner is 
asking to have water and power disconnected when they leave town for a weekend.  Proposed 
resolution is based on conversations with Todd to control costs involved. 
 
Executive Session:  Council and Mayor will be having an executive session for discussion of possible 
purchase of real property.  No decision can be made in executive session and the scope of said sessions 
is very limited by statute.  MRSC has a very good section if any of you want to take a look at rules 
relating to executive sessions, or I can answer any questions that come up. 
 
Misc.:  There is a claim pending from Laura Vaughn relating to a sewer back up at her property.  Date 
of Loss was December 16, 2018.  City insurance and Vaughn’s insurance are discussing liability and 
damages at this time.  Without commenting on validity or lack of validity, I believe it is a matter that 
will be handled between insurance companies. 
 
If you have any questions or need any additional information, please do not hesitate to ask or request.  
 

 
 
 
 



TA
B

 -
 C



TA
B

 -
 D



TA
B

 -
 E



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Orffer 

From: Todd Baun- Director of Public Works 

Date: February 4th, 2019 

Re: Truck Roll fee 

 

 

The City has been having customers turning their utilities on and off several times during 

a billing cycle.  They are doing this to try save money on their utility bill.  This causes 

additional costs for the city by having the crew go to the location several times a month 

and also causes additional paper work for the Utility Accountant, who has to correctly 

calculate the bill with the several requests for the turn off/on. 

 

We currently do not have a fee associated with these turn off/on and since we are starting 

to have customers take advantage of this, we would like to establish a fee for customer 

convenience re-connection during normal business hours and update our after hour’s re-

connection fee 

 

Lori Ann and I have been researching the voluntary reconnection fee is somewhere in the 

area of $20-$50 during normal business hours. That is why we are proposing the $50 fee 

during the normal business hours and the $150 after hour’s fee.   

 

Here is our MMC below.   

 

13.04.220 Fees. 

A verbal or written request for any discontinuance or turn-on of water service to a 

premises for the convenience of the occupant or owner shall be subject to the payment of 

such fee, if any, as may be established by resolution of the council. 

 

(Ord. 742 § 16, 2007: Ord. 519 § 22, 1987) 

 

 

 

Action Requested: 

 

Please discuss and allow the Mayor to sign the Resolution.       

Tab  



TA
B

 -
 F



TA
B

 -
 G

















































TA
B

 -
 H





TA
B

 -
 I



TA
B

 -
 J



 
   

 
RESOLUTION - 1      CITY OF McCLEARY            

01/31/2019            100 SOUTH 3RD STREET        

CJC/ts       McCLEARY, WASHINGTON  98557 

RESOLUTION NO. 627 

A RESOLUTION RELATING TO THE UTILIZATION OF 

CERTAIN MUNICIPAL FACILITIES, ESTABLISHING 

FEES; AND REPEALING RESOLUTION NUMBER 625 AND 

ANY OTHER RESOLUTION IN CONFLICT THEREWITH. 

 

R E C I T A L S: 

A. The City has previously adopted a Resolution in relation to those facilities it 

makes available to the public for rent. Since the adoption of Resolution 625, the City has added 

additional facilities, expanded the utilization of these facilities by groups directly related to the 

parks and recreation programs implemented by the City, and undertaken a general review of 

the existing utilization and provisions. In light of those factors, the Mayor and Council deem it 

appropriate to update these provisions. 

B. It is the intention of the Council, the Mayor concurring, to provide certain terms 

and conditions that relate to the utilization of covered City facilities by non-profit entities 

associated with the operations of the parks and recreation activities of the City, modify rates, 

and clarify fees. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS BY THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF McCLEARY, THE MAYOR SIGNING IN AUTHENTICATION 

THEREOF: 

SECTION I: The facilities covered by the terms of this Resolution shall be the public 

areas of the Community Center and the City 's Parks made available for rental by the City, as 

they may from time-to-time exist pursuant to Council authorization. 



 
   

 
RESOLUTION - 2      CITY OF McCLEARY            

01/31/2019            100 SOUTH 3RD STREET        

CJC/ts       McCLEARY, WASHINGTON  98557 

SECTION II: Any person or entity requesting the right to utilize the pub1ic property 

normally offered for rental shall make an application to the Clerk-Treasurer upon such form as 

may from time-to-time be established by the Clerk-Treasurer. The rental shall be at such rates 

and upon such terms as the City Council, the Mayor concurring, shall from time-to-time 

establish by action. 

SECTION III: The utilization of the facility may be conditioned upon such terms as 

may be deemed reasonably necessary by the Clerk-Treasurer. These terms shall include, but 

not be limited to, the following: 

A. No intoxicating beverages shall be served or provided to nor shall any 

consumption be allowed by any minor. 

B. All necessary banquet and gambling permits required by law must be obtained 

prior to the function and only such activities as may be lawfully authorized on public properties 

shall be allowed. 

C. Care shall be taken to insure that no individual is allowed to consume an excess 

of intoxicating beverages. For purposes of this term, excess shall mean so as to affect in any 

significant manner whatsoever the individual's physical or mental capabilities. 

D. Deposits shall be paid at the time of application and shall be refunded only upon 

proof satisfactory to the Clerk-Treasurer that no damages have occurred, and that all cleaning 

has been completed. 



 
   

 
RESOLUTION - 3      CITY OF McCLEARY            

01/31/2019            100 SOUTH 3RD STREET        

CJC/ts       McCLEARY, WASHINGTON  98557 

E. Any application must be in writing and executed by an authorized individual. 

That individual shall acknowledge responsibility for the application and for fulfilling the terms 

of the rental agreement. 

F. The rental amount shall be paid no less than one business day prior to the 

intended utilization. 

G. Any party or entity renting a facility shall be responsible for the cleaning and 

repair of the facility by restoring it to the condition existing prior to the commencement of 

utilization. In the event of a failure to do so, whether as to cleaning or repair, the City shall 

notify the utilizer of the failure and the costs related to correction of that failure. In the event of 

a failure to fulfill these responsibilities within such time period as may be established by the 

Director of Community Development, the responsible individual or entity shall be billed for the 

costs and shall pay the same. 

H. The provision of such insurance coverages as may be deemed necessary and 

appropriate in light of the type of activity involved. 

SECTION IV: The Clerk-Treasurer shall be and is hereby authorized to promulgate 

such rules and regulations as may be deemed from time-to-time reasonably necessary for 

operation of the facility. Prior to their effectiveness, they shall be submitted to the City Council 

and Mayor for review. To the extent not disapproved, such rule or regulation shall go into effect 

upon the thirtieth day following the first Council Meeting at which they are presented to the 

Mayor and Council in a written form: PROVIDED that the Council specifically reserves to 



 
   

 
RESOLUTION - 4      CITY OF McCLEARY            

01/31/2019            100 SOUTH 3RD STREET        

CJC/ts       McCLEARY, WASHINGTON  98557 

itself the right to suspend such proposed rule or regulation, or reject, modify, or supplement 

such proposed regulations. 

SECTION V: As to the security and/or supervision for an event, the Chief of Police or 

the Chief 's designee shall have the sole discretion to determine the level of staffing and the 

level of qualifications to be required in relation to any particular activity. 

SECTION VI:   NON-GENERAL CATEGORIES: 

A. Utilization of the facility by associations related to the operation of the parks 

and recreation program of the City whose utilization is approved by the Mayor shall be allowed 

to utilize the facilities without cost so long as the utilization relates directly to their program.  

The utilizing entity: 

a. Shall post a damage deposit of one-hundred fifty dollars ($150.00), payable in 

cash or check, which shall be retained until the association gives notice of its 

intention to cease utilization, and  

b. Shall be responsible for cleaning the facility after use and for the repair or 

replacement of damage done arising out of or related to its use of the facility. In 

the event of a failure to fulfill these responsibilities, the entity shall forfeit any 

deposit shall be billed for the costs and shall pay the same, less the deposit. 

B. In recognition of the contribution to the community previously provided by the 

senior citizens, a rate of one-half of that which is normally charged shall be charged for senior 

citizen functions carried out by non-profit groups. 



 
   

 
RESOLUTION - 5      CITY OF McCLEARY            

01/31/2019            100 SOUTH 3RD STREET        

CJC/ts       McCLEARY, WASHINGTON  98557 

SECTION VII: Until further action of the Council, the Park kitchen facilities may be 

utilized by applicants utilizing the City facility for the purpose of maintaining perishable foods 

at the appropriate temperatures, whether requiring heating or cooling. Such utilization shall 

be at the sole risk of the applicant. In the event that any such perishable foods require such 

heating or cooling, the applicant shall provide such equipment as may be necessary to 

accomplish these actions and to comply with such standards as may from time-to-time be 

established by the appropriate agency having control over such health matters. 

SECTION VIII: The rates and deposits for general utilization of the cited facilities for 

a period of up to four (4) hours are established as follows: 

8.1 RATES 

A. Park Kitchen and Pavilion: 

a. Fifty dollars ($50.00)  

b. One-hundred dollars ($150.00) deposit, payable in cash or check only 

B. Community Center: 

a. Gatherings, including: birthday parties, marriage and infant showers, family 

dinners, dances, garage sales, swap meets, funerals, and celebrations of life: 

Fee: One-hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) 

Deposit: Two-hundred dollars ($200.00), payable in cash or check only 

b. Regularly scheduled events held on a weekly, monthly, or annual basis: 

Fee: Thirty-five dollars ($35.00) 

Deposit: Two-hundred dollars ($200.00), payable in cash or check only 



 
   

 
RESOLUTION - 6      CITY OF McCLEARY            

01/31/2019            100 SOUTH 3RD STREET        

CJC/ts       McCLEARY, WASHINGTON  98557 

c. Non-profit, non-sectarian formally organized groups as defined within the 

provisions of the Municipal Code which have chapters, troops, or similar units 

located within the City: 

Fee: $0.00 

Deposit: One-hundred fifty dollars ($150.00), payable in cash or check 

only, unless waived by the Mayor. (Applies to no more than four (4) 

meetings per 30-day period.) 

d. Utilization of the facility for governmental purposes by another governmental 

agency: Such use shall be allowed at no cost so long as the event has a reasonable 

relationship to the City or its citizens: PROVIDED THAT, in the absence of that 

relationship the charge shall be at the rate of fifty dollars ($50.00) per event. The 

utilizing entity shall be responsible for cleaning the facility after use and for the 

repair or replacement of damage done arising out of or related to its use of the 

facility. In the event of a failure to fulfill these responsibilities, the entity shall 

forfeit any deposit and be billed for the costs and shall pay the same.  

8.2 DEPOSITS 

A. Unless a specific deposit is established for a use, the following deposits shall be 

required as a condition of utilization of the facility. 

a. Park Kitchen & Pavilion: One-hundred fifty dollars ($150.00), payable in cash 

or check  

b. Community Center: Two-hundred dollars ($200.00), payable in cash or check 



 
   

 
RESOLUTION - 7      CITY OF McCLEARY            

01/31/2019            100 SOUTH 3RD STREET        

CJC/ts       McCLEARY, WASHINGTON  98557 

B. The Clerk-treasurer shall have the authority to require a greater deposit if, In the 

opinion of that person, the requested utilization carries with it a greater risk of damage to the 

facility than would be normally anticipated or in the even the applicant has previously utilized 

a City facility and not satisfactorily restored the premises to its original condition or has 

otherwise violated a term or condition related to the facilities utilization.  

SECTION IX: Resolution 627 and any other resolution or port ion thereof in conflict 

with the provisions of this resolution shall be and are hereby repealed.  

PASSED THIS _____ DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2019, by the City Council of the City of 

McCleary, and signed in authentication thereof this _____ day of February, 2019.  

CITY OF McCLEARY: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

BRENDA ORFFER, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

______________________________________ 

WENDY COLLINS, Clerk-Treasurer 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

CHRISTOPHER JOHN COKER, City Attorney 

 


